
 

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Minutes of the King William County Economic Development Authority 
Meeting of January 12, 2022 

Page 1 of 15 

MINUTES 
KING WILLIAM COUNTY 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY  
ORGANIZATIONAL AND REGULAR MEETING OF JANUARY 12, 2022 

 
An organizational and regular meeting of the King William County Economic Development 
Authority Board of Directors was held on the 12th day of January 2022, beginning at 7:00 
p.m. in the Board Room of the County Administration Building and via Zoom. 
 
Agenda Item 1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
Chairman Brown called the meeting to order. 
 
Agenda Item 2. ROLL CALL 
 
Chairman Brown asked for a motion to approve Authority Member Holderied’s participation 
via Zoom due to illness. Vice Chair Rhoads made a motion to approve Authority Member 
Holderied’s electronic participation in the meeting. Authority Member Piersa seconded the 
motion. The Chairman called for any discussion. The Chairman called for any opposition. 
There being none, Authority Member Holderied’s electronic participation via Zoom was 
approved. 
 
The members were polled: 
 
Travis W. Longest Present 
C. Meade Rhoads, Jr. – Vice Chair Present 
W. Brian Hodges Absent 
Kenneth A. Holderied Absent 
Charles F. Piersa Present 
Eugene L. Campbell, Jr. Present 
Jay Brown – Chairman Present 
 
Agenda Item 3. REVIEW AND ADOPTION OF MEETING AGENDA 
 
Chair Brown said discussion of the Board Matrix needed to be added after Item 7. Vice Chair 
Rhoads made a motion to adopt the Meeting Agenda with the above amendment; seconded 
by Authority Member Campbell. There being no discussion or opposition, the Meeting 
Agenda was adopted with one amendment. 
 
Agenda Item 4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
None presented. 
 
  



 

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Minutes of the King William County Economic Development Authority 
Meeting of January 12, 2022 

Page 2 of 15 

Agenda Item 5. TREASURER’S REPORT 
Percy Ashcraft introduced himself to the Board as the new County Administrator and 
thanked Steve Hudgins, Deputy County Administrator, for his service on the EDA Board as 
the Interim County Administrator.  
 
Mr. Hudgins gave the Authority Members copies of past expenditures and budget requests 
(Attachment A). The FY22 budget appropriated $10,000 for Professional Services; $5,000 for 
the MPA membership, $500 for Other Operating Expenses; and $18,789.94 carried over from 
FY21 for engaging RKG. As of January 12, 2022, expenditures included $5,000 for the MPA 
membership and $200 for the Civil War Trails sign. This leaves a balance of $29,089.94. An 
invoice from RKG was just received this week and is not included on this report yet.  
 
Discussion of the FY23 Budget Request included $25,750 for Phase II of the RKG study and 
$5,000 for the MPA membership.  
 
[Authority Member Holderied arrived via Zoom at 7:07pm.] 
 
Mr. Hudgins said a District 2 citizen had applied for and received an AFID Grant which has a 
County match. He said this was a great opportunity for the EDA to distribute in the future. 
There is one grant available per locality per year. Vice Chair Rhoads asked how much the 
County match was. Mr. Hudgins said it’s a two-to-one match with a State maximum of 
$25,000 and a County maximum of $12,500. 
 
He suggested a new budget line item be created for this in the EDA’s budget request. He also 
said there is room for outside donors to contribute towards the County’s match. 
 
Chairman Brown asked if the County anticipated anything with the Purina expansion. 
 
Vice Chair Rhoads said he thought the AFID grant was a good opportunity for the EDA since 
they have a lot of agriculture experience.  
 
Authority Member Piersa said it’s also a good resource for new people just getting into 
agriculture. He asked if the EDA would have to ask the Board for additional funding if another 
opportunity came along. Mr. Hudgins suggested asking for $10,000 over the AFID match 
amount. 
 
Authority Member Longest said the full amount for professional services is needed for RKG 
and funds may be needed elsewhere. He suggested the grant line item could stay at $12,500 
and they could request or move funds from another line item if more were needed. 
 
Authority Member Piersa asked the County Administrator’s plans for the future. Mr. Ashcraft 
said he will address this a bit later in the meeting.  
 
  



 

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Minutes of the King William County Economic Development Authority 
Meeting of January 12, 2022 

Page 3 of 15 

Chairman Brown summarized the FY23 Budget request per the discussion so far: 
 
 $35,750 for Professional Services (RKG amount + $10,000) 
 12,500 AFID Grant  
 5,000 MPA (He said this may need to be moved to another department since it is a 

County membership, not an EDA membership.) 
 500 Other Operating Supplies 
 1,000 Training, Travel, Education 
 
Authority Member Piersa said $1,000 for travel doesn’t go far and recommended $2,500. He 
asked about funding for infrastructure projects. 
 
Mr. Hudgins said Capital Infrastructure, not the EDA’s, is included in the CIP at $1,388,622. 
 
Authority Member Campbell asked if funds for Broadband were still included in that amount. 
Mr. Hudgins said yes, $275,000 had already been deducted from the above amount. 
 
Authority Member Piersa asked if the EDA would have to get the Board of Supervisors’ 
approval to use those funds. Mr. Hudgins said yes, they’d need to request and get Board 
approval if they had a project in mind. 
 
Chairman Brown asked if anyone had anything else to add.  
 
Vice Chair Rhoads made a motion to approve the FY23 EDA Budget request as follows: 
 $35,750 for Professional Services (RKG amount + $10,000) 
 12,500 AFID Grant  
 5,000 MPA 
 500 Other Operating Supplies 
 2,500 Training, Travel, Education 
 $56,250 Total 
Authority Member Piersa seconded the motion. The Chairman called for any discussion. 
There being none, the members were polled: 
 
W. Brian Hodges Absent 
Kenneth A. Holderied Aye 
Charles F. Piersa Aye 
Eugene L. Campbell, Jr. Aye 
Travis W. Longest Aye 
C. Meade Rhoads, Jr. – Vice Chair Aye 
Jay Brown – Chairman Aye 
 
Chairman Brown asked when they had to come before the Board to make this request. Mr. 
Hudgins said it might not be necessary for anyone from the EDA to come. The Board has 
Budget Work Sessions planned for January 31, February 22, and March 2. 



 

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Minutes of the King William County Economic Development Authority 
Meeting of January 12, 2022 

Page 4 of 15 

 
Mr. Ashcraft said he’d get a good feel if someone will need to come and he will let them know. 
He said the Board of Supervisors is excited for the EDA to be active. 
 
Agenda Item 6. ANNUAL MEETING MATTERS 
 
Chairman Brown asked if it’s better to have a Secretary/Treasurer be a member of the EDA 
Board or a County staff member. Mr. Ashcraft said he recommends an EDA member fill this 
position. Authority Member Piersa said the EDA would need a checking account for the kitty 
litter plant expansion project. If they will be transferring money, the Treasurer should be a 
member of the EDA. 
 
Authority Member Piersa made a motion to combine the Secretary and Treasurer positions. 
Authority Member Campbell seconded. There being no discussion or opposition, the motion 
passed. 
 
6.a. Election of EDA Board Chairman 
 
Authority Member Campbell nominated Vice Chair Rhoads for the position of Board 
Chairman. Vice Chair Rhoads accepted the nomination. 
 
Authority Member Campbell made a motion to elect C. Meade Rhoads as Chairman of the 
EDA Board of Directors. Authority Member Longest seconded the motion. The Chairman 
called for any discussion. There being none, the members were polled: 
 
Kenneth A. Holderied Aye 
Charles F. Piersa Aye 
Eugene L. Campbell, Jr. Aye 
Travis W. Longest Aye 
C. Meade Rhoads, Jr. – Vice Chair Aye 
W. Brian Hodges Absent 
Jay Brown – Chairman Aye 
 
The consensus of the Board was to have Mr. Brown continue to Chair the remainder of this 
meeting. 
 
6.b. Election of EDA Board Vice-Chairman 
 
Authority Member Piersa nominated Chairman Brown for the position of Board Vice-
Chairman. Chairman Brown declined the nomination. 
 
Chairman Brown nominated Authority Member Piersa for the position of Board Vice-
Chairman. Authority Member Piersa accepted the nomination.  
 



 

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Minutes of the King William County Economic Development Authority 
Meeting of January 12, 2022 

Page 5 of 15 

Authority Member Longest made a motion to elect Charles F. Piersa as Vice-Chairman of the 
EDA Board of Directors. Authority Member Holderied seconded the motion. The Chairman 
called for any discussion. There being none, the members were polled: 
 
Charles F. Piersa Aye 
Eugene L. Campbell, Jr. Aye 
Travis W. Longest Aye 
C. Meade Rhoads, Jr. – Vice Chair Aye 
W. Brian Hodges Absent 
Kenneth A. Holderied Aye 
Jay Brown – Chairman Aye 
 
6.c.d. Election of EDA Board Secretary/Treasurer 
 
Authority Member Piersa nominated Authority Member Campbell for the position of Board 
Secretary/Treasurer. Authority Member Campbell accepted the nomination.  
 
Authority Member Piersa made a motion to elect Eugene L. Campbell, Jr. as 
Secretary/Treasurer of the EDA Board of Directors. Authority Member Longest seconded the 
motion. The Chairman called for any discussion. There being none, the members were polled: 
 
Eugene L. Campbell, Jr. Aye 
Travis W. Longest Aye 
C. Meade Rhoads, Jr. – Vice Chair Aye 
W. Brian Hodges Absent 
Kenneth A. Holderied Aye 
Charles F. Piersa Aye 
Jay Brown – Chairman Aye 
 
Agenda Item 7. COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR’S REMARKS (Attachment B) 
 
Mr. Ashcraft congratulated those elected to leadership positions and said County staff will 
support them. He thanked Mr. Brown for serving as Chairman over the past two years. 
 
Mr. Ashcraft said a positive, “do not fail” attitude must be developed. He said a script is 
needed for staff to follow when dealing with potential opportunities. He wants to get the 
County out of being in a crisis management position and develop a plan for a more diverse 
tax base. 
 
The roadmap to doing this will be Mr. Ashcraft and Mr. Hudgins heading up Economic 
Development for the County. They will work on it daily and make is a priority. They will be 
aggressive and send the message that “King William County is open for business.” 
 
  



 

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Minutes of the King William County Economic Development Authority 
Meeting of January 12, 2022 

Page 6 of 15 

Mr. Ashcraft said the fundamentals include:  
 
1) Board of Supervisors: He said they are willing to support the EDA and let staff do their job 
to encourage economic development. He said the Board of Supervisors is 100% committed 
to advancing economic development in the County.  
 
2) An Active EDA: There has to be that support network and members must understand 
critical effort requirements to being on the EDA. 
 
3) Staff Leadership: Mr. Ashcraft, Mr. Hudgins, and Ms. Graham (Director of Planning) are the 
EDA’s staff leadership team. The Comprehensive Plan is a living document which will direct 
them. They will be investing public funds and a lot of time in this effort. 
 
Mr. Ashcraft said major considerations include: 
 
Water – collecting and disposing of water is a big piece of economic development. We have 
the new tank coming soon and have a good relationship with HRSD. We need to come up 
with creative ways to use well and septic for economic development. 
 
Labor Force – County unemployment is 2.4% as of November. This equates to less than 100 
people. While this is a great thing, where you’re going to recruit workers for new businesses 
must be considered. 
 
Incentives – identify areas where enterprise zones with incentives can be developed 
(waiving fees, taxes, etc.). We must engage with the State to see where we fit. 
 
Cash Reserve Fund – we have a good base already and we need to use it to help get businesses 
in the County. 
 
Transportation – we are not far from interstates 95 and 64. Route 360 is also a great artery 
and is good for trucks. It’s safe, not intrusive, and easy to find. The County must work with 
VDOT to make improvements to be responsive to business. 
 
Education – we need to understand and maybe take a refresher course – things have 
changed. The State gets a lead, then it goes to a regional entity (MPA), and eventually it is 
passed to the locality. We need to get to know the MPA and market the County so they can 
then champion for us. Mr. Ashcraft said he’d like to get the MPA and State staff here to meet 
the EDA Board at a meeting. 
 
Mr. Ashcraft said the purpose of the EDA is to promote economic development in the County. 
A County strategy must be developed and include the Board of Supervisors, EDA, and County 
staff working together. We must make sure we can respond when opportunity knocks. This 
starts with good communication. 
 



 

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Minutes of the King William County Economic Development Authority 
Meeting of January 12, 2022 

Page 7 of 15 

Mr. Ashcraft said the EDA should consider forming subcommittees with every member 
involved and engaged between meetings (Zoom can be used for this). Some subcommittees 
mentioned were lead development, business retention/support, site 
development/enterprise zones, identifying properties on the market, 
incentives/proffers/amenities, analyzing business taxes (collected vs. billed, compared to 
neighboring localities), ordinance development to benefit businesses, and federal and state 
laws and lawmakers - to make sure we’re being represented well. 
 
Mr. Ashcraft suggested forming a business round table with local business leaders. The 
appointment would be for one year and meet a few times with EDA members. They’ll tell you 
what it’s like to be a business person in the County. 
 
Mr. Ashcraft said growth is often met with mixed emotions. He said there is a difference 
between growth and development. Growth takes over and sprawls. Development is planned, 
orderly, and on the County’s terms. We want to develop King William County. 
 
Authority Member Piersa asked if there is any property ready for development in the County 
now. Mr. Ashcraft said nothing now but there are some things in the pipeline. Ms. Graham 
said she has two or three happening in the Planning Dept. Some things could also be spinning 
off the recent Nestle expansion. 
 
Authority Member Holderied asked when the EDA gets notified by Zoning about any permits 
issued. Mr. Ashcraft said when the leads come in, if possible. Sometimes confidentiality needs 
to be protected. He said staff will give the EDA as much as they can as soon as they can. 
 
Chairman Brown said he appreciated Mr. Ashcraft’s stable leadership and transparency and 
thanked Mr. Hudgins for his work on the EDA as Interim County Administrator. 
 
Mr. Ashcraft asked if it would be agreeable with the Authority Members to discuss 
subcommittee creation at the next meeting.  
 
Vice Chair Rhoads asked for a contact list of Authority Members and County staff. He said he 
will work with staff, Authority Member Campbell, and Authority Member Piersa to form a 
game plan before the next meeting and to put together a packet for the Board of Supervisors 
before the next EDA meeting. 
 
Agenda Item 8. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
8.a. Board Matrix – Jay Brown, Chairman (Attachment C) 
 
Vice Chair Rhoads said he added the EDA’s purpose to the matrix and how the skills listed 
help fulfill that purpose. He asked the Authority members to recruit people with these skills 
to apply to be on the EDA. He said this will be revisited at the next meeting with a 



 

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Minutes of the King William County Economic Development Authority 
Meeting of January 12, 2022 

Page 8 of 15 

recommendation for the Board of Supervisors to fill the vacant positions. He thanked 
Chairman Brown for serving as Chairman for the past two years.  
 
Authority Member Piersa said it’s difficult to get people to even apply and asked what could 
be done to get people interested. Mr. Ashcraft said staff has some ideas. Vice Chair Rhoads 
said it’s easier to get people engaged when exciting things are happening. Authority Member 
Piersa said the government’s stability with a new County Administrator will also help. 
 
Agenda Item 9. NEW BUSINESS 
There was no new business. 
 
Agenda Item 10. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD 
 
Chairman Brown opened the Public Comment Period. 
 
Mr. Donald Wagner of the 5th District said he hasn’t seen much from the EDA in the past and 
they now have an opportunity with what Mr. Ashcraft has proposed. He said many things 
have been coming to the Planning Commission and the County now has Broadband coming, 
the Purina expansion, and opportunities with Commerce Park. He said it takes the 
involvement of the County and Mr. Ashcraft has offered that now. Someone has to get out 
there and meet with potential businesses and go outside the County and seek people. He said 
to look at what the Planning Commission is doing and get involved with the Comprehensive 
Plan update. He said this is the vision for the County and they all need to work together to 
move it forward. He thanked the EDA members for their service and said he looks forward 
to working together.  
 
Chairman Brown shared his observations regarding previous attempts to engage inter-
Board. He said questions were asked but answers were never given. He said he’d like to 
receive feedback and answering the questions would make them feel they’re being heard.  
 
There being no further speakers, Chairman Brown closed the Public Comment Period. 
 
Agenda Item 11. ADJOURN OR RECESS 
 
Mr. Hudgins said the Planning Commission has asked for a Joint Work Session with the EDA 
and Board of Supervisors to go over the Comprehensive Plan with Hill Studio. The meeting 
will be held on Monday, February 14th, at 7:00pm in the Board Room and via Zoom. Ms. 
Graham provided a copy of the draft Future Land Use Map and Mr. Hudgins said he would 
send the current draft of the Comprehensive Plan prior to the meeting. 
 
The next Regular Meeting of the EDA will be held on Wednesday, February 9th, at 7:00pm in 
the Board Room and via Zoom. 
 



 

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Minutes of the King William County Economic Development Authority 
Meeting of January 12, 2022 

Page 9 of 15 

Chairman Brown made a motion to adjourn. Motion was seconded by Authority Member 
Longest. There being no discussion and no opposition, the meeting was adjourned. 
 
 
COPY TESTE: 

 
 
    
Jay Brown Christine H. Branch 
EDA Chairman Deputy Clerk 
 



 

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
ATTACHMENT A 

DRAFT Minutes of the King William County Economic Development Authority 
Meeting of January 12, 2022 

Page 10 of 15 

ATTACHMENT A 

 

 

 
 



 

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
ATTACHMENT B 

DRAFT Minutes of the King William County Economic Development Authority 
Meeting of January 12, 2022 

Page 11 of 15 

ATTACHMENT B 

 



 

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
ATTACHMENT B 

DRAFT Minutes of the King William County Economic Development Authority 
Meeting of January 12, 2022 

Page 12 of 15 

 



 

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
ATTACHMENT B 

DRAFT Minutes of the King William County Economic Development Authority 
Meeting of January 12, 2022 

Page 13 of 15 



 

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
ATTACHMENT C 

DRAFT Minutes of the King William County Economic Development Authority 
Meeting of January 12, 2022 

Page 14 of 15 

ATTACHMENT C 

 



 

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
ATTACHMENT C 

DRAFT Minutes of the King William County Economic Development Authority 
Meeting of January 12, 2022 

Page 15 of 15 

ATTACHMENT C 

 


